


it serves. As of October 2022, the JROs employ roughly 5,200 staff with online legal and 

investigative research needs. 

The determination whether to obtain services under any resulting contract between JAC and 

a Respondent is at the discretion of each JRO. Therefore, JAC cannot provide any

approximate user count per category. 

3. ITN Section 2.11 lists documents that the Contract will incorporate. If Respondents would like

to propose changes to terms and conditions in the ITN (e.g., to Section 3 “Contract Terms”), should 

proposed changes be included in the Technical Section? Or should proposed changes be submitted 

and discussed later during negotiations, after ITN packages are due? Similarly, should 

Respondents include in the Technical Section the Vendor’s licensing terms governing access to

and use of the research solutions? Or should those licensing terms be submitted and discussed at a 

later date? For reference, we submitted the same question about this ITN in 2017, and JAC

responded as follows: “All proposals must meet all mandatory terms and conditions of the ITN.

By definition, in the issuance of an ITN as a method of solicitation, the JAC intends, and the 

express language of the ITN mandates, that there will be a negotiation period. This is the only

portion of the ITN process wherein any proposed changes to the terms and conditions of the ITN 

could potentially be brought up by a respondent. Similarly, information regarding a respondent’s

licensing terms governing access to and use of the online research database solutions could be a 

part of that same negotiation process.”

All Replies must meet all mandatory terms and conditions of the ITN. By definition, in the

issuance of an ITN as a method of solicitation, the JAC intends, and the express language

throughout the ITN mandates, that there will be a negotiation period. This is the only portion

of the ITN process wherein any proposed changes to the terms and conditions of the ITN

could potentially be brought up by a Respondent. Similarly, information regarding a 

Respondent’s licensing terms governing access to and use of the online research database 

solutions could be a part of that same negotiation process. 

4. Section 2.21 says the ITN package is due March 19, which is Sunday. Is this is a typo? Section 

1.3 “Calendar of Events” identifies March 20 as the due date. 

Section 2.21 is corrected to read as follows:

2.21 Checklist 

The following items should be included in the ITN package as specified in Section 5, 

Reply Instructions, and must be received no later than 2:00 P.M. ET, March 20, 2023, 

by JAC at the address indicated in Section 1.4, Calendar of Events: 

Transmittal Letter

Sealed Technical Section

Sealed Price Sheet


